
Democratic Services
White Cliffs Business Park
Dover
Kent  CT16 3PJ

Telephone: (01304) 821199
Fax: (01304) 872452
DX: 6312
Minicom: (01304) 820115
Website: www.dover.gov.uk
e-mail: democraticservices

@dover.gov.uk

4 July 2016

Dear Councillor

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a meeting of the REGULATORY COMMITTEE will be 
held in the Council Chamber at these Offices on Tuesday 12 July 2016 at 10.00 am when 
the following business will be transacted. 

Members of the public who require further information are asked to contact Jemma Duffield 
on (01304) 872305 or by e-mail at jemmaduffield@dover.gov.uk.

Yours sincerely

Chief Executive 

Regulatory Committee Membership:

B W Butcher (Chairman)
B Gardner
S J Jones
P S Le Chevalier (Vice-Chairman)
D P Murphy

AGENDA

1   APOLOGIES  

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2   APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  

To note appointment of Substitute Members. 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  (Page 3)

To receive any declarations of interest from Members in respect of business to be 
transacted on the agenda.  

Public Document Pack



4   MINUTES  (Pages 4 - 10)

To confirm the attached Minutes of the meetings of the Committee held on 18 
March 2016 and 12 April 2016. 

PROCEDURE FOR HEARING  (Pages 11 - 12)

The procedure for the Hearing is attached.

5   LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976 - 
APPLICATION TO LICENCE VEHICLE OUTSIDE OF POLICY GUIDELINES  
(Pages 13 - 26)

To consider the attached report of the Licensing Team Leader. 

Access to Meetings and Information

 Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Council, its 
Committees and Sub-Committees.  You may remain present throughout them except 
during the consideration of exempt or confidential information.

 All meetings are held at the Council Offices, Whitfield unless otherwise indicated on 
the front page of the agenda.  There is disabled access via the Council Chamber 
entrance and a disabled toilet is available in the foyer.  In addition, there is a PA 
system and hearing loop within the Council Chamber.

 Agenda papers are published five clear working days before the meeting.  
Alternatively, a limited supply of agendas will be available at the meeting, free of 
charge, and all agendas, reports and minutes can be viewed and downloaded from 
our website www.dover.gov.uk.  Minutes will be published on our website as soon as 
practicably possible after each meeting.  All agenda papers and minutes are 
available for public inspection for a period of six years from the date of the meeting.  

 If you require any further information about the contents of this agenda or your right 
to gain access to information held by the Council please contact Jemma Duffield, 
Democratic Support Officer, telephone: (01304) 872305 or email: 
jemmaduffield@dover.gov.uk for details.

Large print copies of this agenda can be supplied on request.



Declarations of Interest

Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI)

Where a Member has a new or registered DPI in a matter under consideration they must 

disclose that they have an interest and, unless the Monitoring Officer has agreed in advance 

that the DPI is a 'Sensitive Interest', explain the nature of that interest at the meeting. The 

Member must withdraw from the meeting at the commencement of the consideration of any 

matter in which they have declared a DPI and must not participate in any discussion of, or 

vote taken on, the matter unless they have been granted a dispensation permitting them to 

do so. If during the consideration of any item a Member becomes aware that they have a 

DPI in the matter they should declare the interest immediately and, subject to any 

dispensations, withdraw from the meeting.

Other Significant Interest (OSI)

Where a Member is declaring an OSI they must also disclose the interest and explain the 

nature of the interest at the meeting. The Member must withdraw from the meeting at the 

commencement of the consideration of any matter in which they have declared a OSI and 

must not participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter unless they have been 

granted a dispensation to do so or the meeting is one at which members of the public are 

permitted to speak for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving 

evidence relating to the matter. In the latter case, the Member may only participate on the 

same basis as a member of the public and cannot participate in any discussion of, or vote 

taken on, the matter and must withdraw from the meeting in accordance with the Council's 

procedure rules.

Voluntary Announcement of Other Interests (VAOI)

Where a Member does not have either a DPI or OSI but is of the opinion that for 

transparency reasons alone s/he should make an announcement in respect of a matter 

under consideration, they can make a VAOI. A Member declaring a VAOI may still remain at 

the meeting and vote on the matter under consideration.

Note to the Code: 

Situations in which a Member may wish to make a VAOI include membership of outside 

bodies that have made representations on agenda items; where a Member knows a person 

involved, but does not have a close association with that person; or where an item would 

affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc. but not his/her 

financial position. It should be emphasised that an effect on the financial position of a 

Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc OR an application made by a Member, 

relative, close associate, employer, etc would both probably constitute either an OSI or in 

some cases a DPI.

3

Agenda Item No 3



Minutes of the meeting of the REGULATORY COMMITTEE held at the Council 
Offices, Whitfield on Friday, 18 March 2016 at 2.04 pm.

Present:

Chairman: Councillor B W Butcher

Councillors: 

Also present:

N Dixon
M R Eddy
P S Le Chevalier
S J Jones

Mr G Lahr (Minute No 36)
Applicant (Minute No 38)
Applicant’s representative (Minute No 38)
Applicant (Minute No 39)
Applicant’s representative (Minute No 39)

Officers: Contentious and Regulatory Lawyer
Licensing Team Leader
Democratic Support Officer

32 APOLOGIES 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors B Gardner and D P Murphy.

33 APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS 

Councillors M R Eddy and N Dixon were appointed as substitutes for Councillors B 
Gardner and D P Murphy respectively.

34 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor P S Le Chevalier declared a Voluntary Announcement of Other Interests 
(VAOI) in Minute no 36 by reason that he knew the applicant and would voluntarily 
withdraw from the meeting for consideration of the item.

35 MINUTES 

The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 1 December 2015 were 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

36 BLOODY MARY'S, 160 - 162 HIGH STREET, DEAL - HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 - 
SECTION 115E 

The Committee considered the report of the Licensing Team Leader on an 
application by Mr Gary Lahr of Bloody Mary’s, 160-162 High Street, Deal for the 
siting of 6 tables and 20 - 24 chairs on the highway immediately in front of the 
premises. Mr Lahr had held a permit to site 4 tables and 8 chairs outside the 
premises since 29 January 2015.

The Committee was advised that 3 representations had been received as well as a 
comment from Kent County Council (KCC) Highways requesting that if the 

4

Agenda Item No 4



application were to be granted, a condition be included that a minimum of 1.2m of 
clear footway be achieved at all times. Following negotiations the applicant had 
agreed to reduce the amount of chairs on the application to 16 and as a result of the 
amendment, 2 of the representations were withdrawn.

A further comment had been received on the day of the hearing from Councillor B 
Gardner, ward councillor for North Deal, who having withdrawn his original 
representation had requested that if the application were to be granted that no 
chairs should be permitted to be moved to the opposite side of the High Street.

Mr Lahr presented his application to the Committee and addressed the issues 
raised in the report regarding street furniture outside the premises and the 3 
complaints received since the original permit had been issued. He stated that he 
resided above the premise and that it was only open until 8pm and did not exercise 
his full licensable hours. Mr Lahr advised that signage was now in place asking that 
no stools or chairs were to be taken outside.

In accordance with the approved procedure the Committee and the Contentious and 
Regulatory Lawyer withdrew to consider the application and upon returning it was

RESOLVED: That having regard to Section 115E of the Highways Act 1980, the 
application by Mr Gary Lahr of Bloody Mary’s, 160-162 High Street, 
Deal to place 6 tables and 16 chairs on the highway immediately 
outside the premises be approved subject to:

(a) The furniture being removed from outside of the premises by 
8.15pm each day;

(b) Where the pavement narrows, on the south side of the 
present entrance/exit, where the two tables each with two 
chairs are to be located, a physical barrier is to be placed 
between the pedestrian highway and the seating area;

(c) A minimum of 1.2 metres of pavement for pedestrians must 
be maintained at all times beyond the seating area in the High 
Street.

(Councillor P S Le Chevalier declared a Voluntary Announcement of Other Interests 
(VAOI) by reason that he knew the applicant and voluntarily withdrew from the 
meeting for the consideration of this item of business.)

37 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

It was moved by Councillor B W Butcher, duly seconded and

RESOLVED: That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the remainder of the 
business on the grounds that the items to be considered involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 1 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

38 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976 - 
APPLICATION FOR A DRIVER'S LICENCE 

5



The Committee considered the report of the Licensing Team Leader on an 
application for a Joint Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver’s Licence where an 
Enhanced Disclosure from the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) had shown a 
number of previous convictions that were relevant to the decision as to the 
applicant’s suitability as a fit and proper person to hold a licence to drive a taxi in the 
Dover District. 

The applicant was last convicted of an offence in November 2013, relating to 
incidents which took place in January and February of the same year. The 
Committee had previously considered an application from the applicant in August 
2015 and resolved that the licence be refused by reason that, at the time, less than 
3 years had elapsed since the last incident and that there was not sufficient reason 
to depart from the Council’s Policy. The applicant was re-applying as the offence 
committed was now over 3 years ago and a fresh DBS application had shown no 
further convictions.

In accordance with the approved procedure Members offered the applicant and the 
applicant’s representative the opportunity to present evidence concerning the 
circumstances surrounding the convictions.

The Committee withdrew to consider its decision and upon resuming the 
Contentious and Regulatory Lawyer explained that she had advised the Committee 
in relation to the Council’s Policy guidelines and Sections 51 and 59 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 relating to the applicant’s 
suitability as a fit and proper person.

RESOLVED: That having regard to the evidence, the Committee considered that 
the applicant was a fit and proper person in accordance with Sections 
51 and 59 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976 and that the application for a Joint Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Licence be granted for an initial period of six months; 
and

(a) That the Licensing Team Leader will monitor and review the 
applicant’s performance for the duration of this period and;

(b) That providing there are no issues during the initial six months 
the licence will be granted for a further six months.

39 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976 - 
APPLICATION FOR A DRIVER'S LICENCE 

The Committee considered the report of the Licensing Team Leader on an 
application for a Joint Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver’s Licence where an 
Enhanced Disclosure from the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) had shown 
previous convictions that were relevant to the decision as to the applicant’s 
suitability as a fit and proper person to hold a licence to drive a taxi in the Dover 
District.

In accordance with the approved procedure Members heard evidence from the 
applicant concerning the circumstances surrounding the conviction and from the 
applicant’s representative who spoke to the applicant’s suitability as a fit and proper 
person.

6



The Committee withdrew to consider its decision and upon returning the 
Contentious and Regulatory Lawyer explained that advice had been given to 
members in relation to Dover District Council’s Policy and Sections 51 and 59 of the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 relating to the applicant’s 
suitability as a fit and proper person.

RESOLVED: That having regard to the evidence, the Committee considered that 
the applicant was a fit and proper person in accordance with Sections 
51 and 59 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976 and that the application for a Joint Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Licence be granted for an initial period of six months 
and;

(a) That the Licencing Team Leader should monitor the 
applicant’s performance for the duration of this period and;

(b) That providing there are no issues during the initial six 
months the licence will be granted for a further six months.

The meeting ended at 3.09 pm.

7



Minutes of the meeting of the REGULATORY COMMITTEE held at the Council 
Offices, Whitfield on Tuesday, 12 April 2016 at 10.03 am.

Present:

Chairman: Councillor B W Butcher

Councillors: 

Also present:

B Gardner
D P Murphy

Ms J Milner (Minute no. 43)
Applicant (Minute no.45)
Person in support (Minute no.45)

Officers: Contentious and Regulatory Lawyer
Licensing Team Leader
Democratic Support Officer

40 APOLOGIES 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors P S Le Chevalier and S J 
Jones.

41 APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS 

There were no substitute Members appointed.

42 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest made by Members.

43 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976 - 
APPLICATION TO LICENCE VEHICLE OUTSIDE OF POLICY GUIDELINES 

The Licensing Team Leader informed the Committee that Mr D Lamb of Relyon 
Transport had applied for permission to licence a Renault Trafic (DU08 OUK) as a 
Private Hire Vehicle. Members were asked to consider that if the vehicle were to be 
approved, authorisation be given to the Licensing Team Leader to approve the 
vehicle for renewal in the future providing the vehicle remained to a good standard 
and was used solely for shuttle services by Relyon.

The Committee was asked to consider the application as the vehicle was outside of 
the policy guidelines by reason that the vehicle was outside the current vehicle age 
policy, being registered on 1 March 2008. The Licensing Team Leader inspected 
the vehicle on 31 March 2016 and found the vehicle to be in very good condition. 
The vehicle was MOT’d on 11 April 2016 and passed with no advisory notes. 

The vehicle would be used to transport passengers to and from Dover Port/Cruise 
Terminal and the parking facilities at the applicant’s business address; the vehicle 
would not be used for any other private hire purpose.

The Committee adjourned to examine the vehicle accompanied by the Applicant’s 
representative (Ms J Milner) and officers.

8



In accordance with the approved procedure, Members of the Committee and the 
Contentious and Regulatory Lawyer withdrew to consider the application. The 
committee had considered the evidence given and the provisions in s48 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and Dover District Council’s 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing policy, specifically paragraph 2.4.1.

RESOLVED: That, notwithstanding the Council’s current policy guidelines, the 
Committee decided on this occasion to deviate from the policy in 
regard to the maximum age of the vehicle on the grounds that the 
Applicant’s stated use of the vehicle was that it would not be as a 
Private Hire vehicle in the traditional sense, but instead would be 
used only in the manner set out by the Applicant, namely to convey 
passengers to and from the port terminal and the parking facilities 
operated by the company and that Mr D Lamb of Relyon Transport 
be GRANTED a Private Hire Vehicle licence in respect of a Renault 
Trafic (DU08 OUK) with the following conditions:

(a) That the vehicle be inspected by Dover District Council every 
6 months, that inspection to be carried out by the Licensing 
Team Leader (or her deputy) and provided that the Licensing 
Team Leader is satisfied that the vehicle remains in a safe 
mechanical and comfortable condition the Licensing Team 
Leader may approve the licence for a further 6 month period.

(i) Clarity provided to the Licensing Team Leader that this 
process will continue to be carried out at six monthly intervals 
thereafter.

44 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

It was moved by Councillor B W Butcher, duly seconded and

RESOLVED: That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the remainder of the 
business on the grounds that the items to be considered involved the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the paragraph of 
Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act.

45 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) 1976 - APPLICATION 
FOR A DRIVER'S LICENCE 

The Committee considered the report of the Licensing Team Leader on an 
application for a Joint Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver’s Licence where an 
Enhanced Disclosure from the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) had shown a 
previous conviction and a caution that were relevant to the decision as to the 
applicant’s suitability as a fit and proper person to hold a licence to drive a taxi in the 
Dover District.

In accordance with the approved procedure Members offered the applicant the 
opportunity to present evidence concerning the conviction and caution and the 
applicant called upon his person in support to speak to his good character and 
suitability as a fit and proper person. 

The Committee withdrew to consider its decision and upon resuming the meeting 
the Contentious and Regulatory Lawyer explained that she had advised the 

9



Committee in relation to the provisions in Sections 51 and 59 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and Dover District Council’s 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing policy, specifically that in relation to 
relevance of convictions (and cautions).

RESOLVED: That having regard to the evidence, the application for a Joint 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licence be granted for an initial 
period of six months; and

(a) That the Licensing Team Leader will monitor and review the 
applicant.

(b) Provided there are no issues during the initial six months the 
licence will be granted for a further six months.

The meeting ended at 10.59 am.

10



RegulatoryCtteeprocedure.doc

DOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL

 REGULATORY COMMITTEE PROCEDURE FOR HEARINGS

1. Introduction of all present. Chairman

2. Purpose of hearing and procedure. Licensing Team Leader

3. Applicant asked to confirm receipt of agenda, Legal Adviser
Licensing Manager's report, Council's policy
guidelines and procedure for hearing. 

4. Licensing Manager's report introduced and Licensing Team Leader
issues summarised

5. Licensing Manager calls any witnesses. Licensing Team Leader
Each witness in turn :
(i)  will give evidence
(ii) may be questioned by the applicant or
     applicant's representatives
(iii) may be questioned by the Committee
(iv) may, if necessary, be re-questioned by the
      Licensing Manager

6. Presentation of case and particular issues   Applicant or his/
(including whether applicant accepts the facts her representative
presented or wishes to correct them)   

7. Applicant or his/her representative may call Applicant or his/
any witnesses (including the Applicant him/ her representative
herself). Each witness in turn:
(i)  will give evidence
(ii) may be questioned by the Licensing Manager
(iii) may be questioned by the Committee
(iv) may, if necessary, be re-questioned by the
      applicant/applicant's representative

 
8. Further questions may be asked of any of the Committee

parties or any witnesses for the purpose of
obtaining further relevant information or
clarification

9. Final submission. Licensing Team Leader

10. Final submission. Applicant

11. Committee withdraws to consider in private.
Clerk and Legal Adviser may be invited to assist
the Committee.

12. If the Committee requires any further information
from any party or any further evidence, all parties will
be recalled and the meeting reconvened.  Any Member
of the Committee who has not been present during the

11



RegulatoryCtteeprocedure.doc

whole of the proceedings must not take part in the 
decision making.

13. Committee reconvenes.  Any legal advice given to the Legal Adviser
Committee in private will be summarised to the Applicant.

14. The decision of the Committee is given to all parties. Chairman
In the event of a decision to refuse, suspend or 
revoke an application, the applicant is told that he/she
has the right of appeal through the Magistrates Court
and then to the Crown Court.

NOTES

1. The opportunities given to the parties within this procedure to ask questions 
should be used only for that purpose - to ask questions. The person asking 
the question will not be allowed to use this right as an opportunity to make 
statements.

2. Members of the Committee are, as a general rule, expected to ask questions 
of the various parties in accordance with this procedure.   However 
circumstances may arise where it is desirable for a Member to seek 
immediate clarification or a point made by a witness or by a party during the 
course of giving evidence, answering questions being put to him by another 
party or making a submission.  This should be permitted by the Chairman 
provided that the question is relevant and is conducive to the proper conduct 
of the hearing.  Where additional questions are permitted after the Applicant's 
case has been summed up, the Applicant or his/her representative will always 
be given the final right of reply.

3. Under no circumstances must the parties or their witnesses offer members of 
the Committee information in the absence of the other party.  Similarly 
Members must not attempt to gain information from any party at the hearing 
in the absence of the other.  These are essential requirements of the proper 
application of the rules of natural justice.

4. The Chairman may vary this procedure as circumstances require but having 
full regard to adhering to the rules of natural justice.

12



Dover District Council

Subject: LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 
1976 – APPLICATION TO LICENCE VEHICLE OUTSIDE OF 
POLICY GUIDELINES

Meeting and Date: Regulatory Committee – 12 July 2016

Report of: Licensing Team Leader

Classification: Unrestricted

Purpose of the report: To consider an application to grant a licence for a private hire 
vehicle outside of policy guidelines

Recommendation: That the Committee determine the application

1. Summary

1.1 Mr David Lamb of Relyon Transport has submitted an application to the Council 
asking for permission to licence a Ford Transit registration number PY57 VAA as a 
Private Hire Vehicle. This vehicle falls outside of the current vehicle age policy; being 
registered on 5 February 2008.  The vehicle has eight seats and will be used to 
transport passengers to and from Dover Port/Cruise Terminal and the parking 
facilities at the applicant’s business address and it is not intended to be used for any 
other purpose.

2. Introduction and Background 

2.1 The regulation of Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Vehicles is a statutory duty of the 
Council under the provisions of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.

2.2 The Dover District Council Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Policy states in 
paragraph 2.4.1 that:

“No application for a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle licence will be granted if 
the vehicle, when application is made, exceeds 5 years of age.”  

2.3 The policy also states “applicants wishing to licence vehicles outside of the policy 
should show sufficient reason for the Council to deviate from agreed policy”. 

2.4 Mr Lamb has applied to licence a Ford Transit PY57 VAA as a private hire vehicle. 
The vehicle was first registered on 5 February 2008 and therefore falls outside of the 
current vehicle age policy.  The vehicle had covered mileage of 125,691 miles at the 
time of the application.  The vehicle will only be used for transporting passengers to 
and from Dover Port and Cruise Terminal and the parking facilities which the 
company operates in Poulton Close, Dover and will not be used for any other 
purpose. 

2.5 The Licensing Enforcement Officer inspected the vehicle on 4 July 2016 and found 
the vehicle to be in very good condition.

13

Agenda Item No 5



3 Identification of Options

     Options:

(a) To allow the application for the grant of Private Hire Vehicle licence to the 
vehicle notwithstanding that this would be a deviation from existing policy. 

(b) To allow the application for the grant of Private Hire Vehicle licence to the 
vehicle and give authorisation to the Licensing Team Leader to approve this 
vehicle for renewal in the future providing it remains to a good standard and is 
to be solely used for shuttle services by Relyon.

(c) To reject the application as there are insufficient reasons to justify a deviation 
from existing policy. 

4 Evaluation of Options

Options:

(a) The vehicle is over the age defined in policy for the grant of a licence. 
However, Mr Lamb is requesting that the Committee consider whether the 
vehicle could be licensed as he feels his application is exceptional 
circumstances and that the vehicle is maintained to very high standard, and is 
in such good condition. It is also important to note that the vehicle will not be 
used for purposes other than the transport of passengers to and from the Port 
and Cruise Terminal and this could be attached as a condition on the licence.

If such a deviation from policy were allowed then it would be necessary to 
make clear that this was an exceptional circumstance and that under normal 
circumstances such a deviation would not be considered.

(b) If the Licensing Team Leader was authorised to approve vehicles for shuttle 
services in the future, it would be necessary to make it clear that this is for the 
circumstances of a shuttle vehicle for Relyon only and that under normal 
circumstances such a deviation would not be considered.

(c) If the Committee felt that there were insufficient reasons to deviate from the 
Policy, then the application should be refused.

5  Resource Implications

      There are no resource implications arising from this report.

6 Appendices

      Appendix A – Application form and supporting papers submitted by Mr Lamb

7 Background Papers

            Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy

           Contact Officer: Rebecca Battrick, Licensing Team Leader. Ext.2279   

14



Appendix A

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26


	Agenda
	3 Declarations of Interest
	4 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 12/04/2016 Regulatory Committee
	Minutes


	 PROCEDURE FOR HEARING
	5 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 - Application to Licence Vehicle Outside of Policy Guidelines
	Appendix A 120716




